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The lady seen in the foreground is in the doorway of the Holt, which at that time was a shoe shop. In 1931, Billy Gearôs 
brother, Cecil opened his fish shop there. His trade was seriously affected by the shortage of fish during the 2nd world 
war, and his life was tragically cut short in 1944 at the early age of 48. On the other side of the street is a lady standing 
in the arch in a wall that still stands and leads into the garden of Melbourne House; she may well be Mrs. Mary Knott 
who lived there. A little further down the Street was Bruton House where Francis Davies lived. It was later renamed 
The Well Head when the famous local historian Reginald Pavey retired there in 1926. 
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This view captured by Claud Hider in 1923 shows the junction of the Axminster Road with the Street. At that time, 
Harry Wild was living in the old Thatched Cottage on the left. After he died it remained empty and was finally pulled 
down and the site was used as a car park. Eventually the road was widened, and the  neighboring cottage was also 
to disappear, and the bus stop is now on the site. The large sign on the corner is warning motorists at the time of the 
danger of a cliff fall, which caused the eventual disappearance of  the road. The Ivy clad building on the opposite side 
was the New Commercial Inn. 
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As with many buildings that Claud Hider was to photograph in Charmouth, the New Commercial Inn was smothered 
with ivy. The building you see today  replaces an earlier thatched inn that was completely destroyed  in January 1888 
together with its neighbour, a grocers shop . The landlord was Henry Wild and it was not until 3 years later that the 
new building was completed. Henry Wild continued as the landlord and the 1911 Census shows him aged 62. Even-
tually he was in partnership with William Hambridge from 1921. The hotel was eventually closed by the brewery and 
divided into three properties (Grosvenor, Charleston and Heron Cottages). 
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This postcard dating back to 1923 shows the junction of the Street with Old Lyme Hill and Old Lyme Road, which led 
through the Devils Bellows. The Old Lyme Road was cut in 1825 as a link to Lyme Regis, as the old Roman Road was 
steep and hazardous. The cliff below Charmouth Cutting had been slipping for some years. When it eventually gave 
way the fields above the Cutting gradually disappeared. Finally, on 26th May 1924, the road was closed to all traffic, 
after a further landslip. The sign on the right warns motorists of the dangerous state of the collapsing road.  
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In our imaginary tour taken by Claud Hider a hundred years ago we have crossed over to the other side of The Street 
and now view the photos he took which were published by him as postcards. The gabled building on the left is 
Claremont, formerly known as Knapp House, which was a popular guest house run by Alfred and Hannah Hodges. 
Above it is Badgers, which was then occupied by George Grinter who ran Foxley Farm, with its fields stretching from 
Old Lyme Hill to Higher Sea Lane. Bruton House and Melbourne House are above it.  
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The large thatched building seen here in the centre at the corner of Higher Sea Lane is very ancient, with a history 
stretching back to times when the village was owned by the Abbot of Forde and it was a hostelry for weary travelers. 
It was called the Fountain, after the stream that passed it and which still exists along Higher Sea Lane. The hostelry 
closed its doors in 1811, although later in the century it reopened as a hotel run by George Holly, who 
renamed it Charmouth House. This eventually closed in 2005 and was split into four dwellings. 
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This is the earliest postcard by Claud Hider that has been found and has the number 17A on the front dating it to 
September 1922. It shows a view looking down The Street with The Royal Oak and War Memorial on the right.  Ar-
thur Hitchcock was the Landlord of The Royal Oak when this photograph was taken. Prior to its opening in 1860 it 
had been a butchers. The large sign above the entrance is a link to September 1651 when Charmouth was from 
where King Charles attempted his escape to freedom across the Channel to France. After he failed, he travelled on 
to Bridport and the painting on the sign is of the huge stone at Lee Lane commemorating the attempt. 
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Claud Hider produced another view of the Royal Oak a few years later. At this time the landlord was Jim Bridle. He 
retired in 1934, but continued to live at St. Helena in Higher Sea Lane before his death in 1953. His daughter married 
the successful garage proprietor and entrepreneur, Billy Gear. Jim was born in Lyme in 1870 and went to sea when 
he was eleven joining The Royal Navy four years afterwards. He was made Leading Seaman in 1892 and Chief Petty 
Officer in 1902. He served in the Navy for twenty five years. 
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This photograph of a group outside the Royal Oak on Remembrance Day in 1925 shows a number of members of 
important village families at that time.  
Back Row:  Alby Cook, Andrew Dunn, Jim Bridle - Landlord, Charlie Larcombe, Shane Burridge 
Middle row:  Billy Gear, Reg Rattenbury, Bill Gordge, Ted Hunter, Fred Hitchcock  
Front row :  Jim Bridle Junior, John Hodder, familiarly known as óScutterô & Boy, his dog 
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Langley House on the left formerly housed the Post Office and was then known as Wistaria.  Edward Day, the famous 
geologist who worked with Sir John Hawkshaw on surveying the first Channel Tunnel and other projects, lived here 
from 1861 to 1865. Above it is the ivy clad frontage of Little Hurst which was owned by Lord Herbert, who in 1857  
opened a convalescent home there with 20 beds and a resident matron. His friend Florence nightingale attended the 
opening ceremony. 
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In 1896 after ninety years in the same premises, where Nisa is today, the Post Office was taken over by William  
Holly and moved further up the Street to Wistaria House, where it was to be run by the father and his son, William 
Jnr. for the next 40 years. When the father died in 1931, the son opened part of it as a stationery shop. William Holly 
 junior finally retired from the Post Office and its next move was in 1939 to the top of The Street to Melville House. 
The outline of Little Hurst, now the local Surgery can be seen behind the high hedge further up The Street.  
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It was William Holly who would sell the many views of Charmouth that Claud Hider produced from the Post Office seen 

here. On the left is an annex that was built and let to a branch of the Wilts and Dorset Bank, which later was taken over 

by Lloyds Bank.  In due course they moved to the bottom of the Street in a premises that is The Bank House Caf® to-

day. On the left is the extensive garden of the Elms whose ivy clad frontage can just be seen. This is an ancient build-

ing which houses the Parish Council offices today. 
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The Reverend Frederick Markby was the rector of St. Andrewôs Church in 1923 and lived at the rear of the Church in 
the Rectory. The Church replaced an ancient building which was demolished in 1835. Near the entrance to St.  
Andrewôs Church is the once imposing tomb of James Warden, recording his many sea battles and his tragic death in 
a duel in 1792. It is one of a number of memorials still remaining both inside and outside the Church commemorating  
the many important individuals who have played a part in the village's history.  


